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Tuesday, February 9, 2010

--- On commencing at 2:07 p.m.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Please be seated.  Okay?  Thank you.

Good afternoon.  The Board is sitting today in a matter of a combined proceeding, EB-2008-0381, commenced by the Ontario Energy Board on its own motion to determine the accuracy of the final account balances with respect to account 1562, deferred PILs for the period October 1st, 2001 to April 30th, 2006, for certain 2008 and 2009 distribution rate applications before the Board.

The rate applications are those of Enwin Utilities Limited, Halton Hills Hydro Inc. and Barrie Hydro Distribution Inc.

There have been numerous procedural steps taken that have led us to where we are today.  Most recently, and pursuant to Procedural Order No. 7, the applicants resubmitted evidence.  An issues conference has taken place and a draft Issues List has been developed for the purpose of establishing the scope of the matters before the Board, as well as managing the proceeding in an orderly fashion.

The Board has reviewed the draft Issues List and is satisfied that it need only hear submissions on the issues that are disputed.

We will commence with that process shortly, but would first like to take this opportunity to respond to a request from Hydro One Brampton.

In a letter to the Board, dated February 5th, Hydro One Brampton requested clarification of a portion of the Board's decision, with reasons issued December 18th, 2009 in which the Board indicated that the issue raised in Hydro One Brampton's letter of November 20th, 2009 is, quote:
"A fact issue to be determined later."

Hydro One Brampton seeks clarification as to whether the "to be determined later" means later in this proceeding or in another proceeding, and if the latter, whether determinations of principles made in the present proceeding bind Hydro One Brampton so as to preclude it from raising its own facts and circumstances in a future proceeding.

The Board wishes to clarify that neither Hydro One Brampton nor any other intervenor in this proceeding will be precluded from making an application subsequent to this proceeding, seeking a different outcome of its particular issues.

If the facts that lead to the Board's decision in this case are sufficiently similar to the -- in a future application, then the future applicant could reasonably expect a similar decision, as well as having its application processed in an expeditious manner.

Conversely, if the facts that exist in any particular future application are not sufficiently similar to the facts that exist in this combined hearing, an applicant can and will be expected to support its position based on the particular facts of that application.

Procedural Order No. 7 lays out the steps in this proceeding up to the applicants' response to the parties' interrogatories, which are to be filed by March 19th, 2010.

It is the Board's intent to take stock of the proceeding at that point and issue further procedural orders.

The outcome of this proceeding will inform the Board as to the most appropriate method going forth to deal with the remaining outstanding account 1562 balances of the rest of the electricity distribution utilities.

My name is Ken Quesnelle, and I will be presiding over today's proceeding, and with me on the panel is Board Member Cynthia Chaplin.

And I will take appearances, please.  Anyone first.
Appearances:

MR. TAYLOR:  I will start.  Good morning, Mr. Chair. My name is Andrew Taylor.  I am counsel for Halton Hills Hydro.  With me is Art Skidmore and David Smelsky.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Taylor.

MR. VEGH:  Good afternoon, Mr. Quesnelle, Ms. Chaplin.  My name is George Vegh.  I am here for the Coalition of Large Distributors and Enwin Utilities Limited --

MS. CHAPLIN:  Microphone please, Mr. Vegh.  Thanks.

MR. VEGH:  Thank you.  I am assisted by my colleague Olivia Kabongo, also of McCarthy Tetrault.  And I am joined by, on my left, Colin McDonald, VP, rates and corporate accounting at PowerStream, and on my right, by Mr. Colin McLorg, manager, regulatory policy and relations.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Vegh.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Chair, Jay Shepherd, School Energy Coalition.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Shepherd.  Anyone else wish to make an appearance?

MS. DUFF:  Allison Duff.  Oh, over here.  Allison Duff on behalf of Consumers Council of Canada.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Good afternoon, MS. Duff.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Other appearances?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Michael Engelberg for Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc. and with me is Jaimie Gribbon.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Good afternoon, Mr. Engelberg.

Okay.  Is that everyone?

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Chair, I have a question arising out of the clarification you just gave for Hydro One Brampton.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Yes, Mr. Engelberg?

MR. ENGELBERG:  When we had the issues conference a couple of weeks ago, what is now Issue No. 13, in what was handed out by Mr. Skinner to everyone today, is an issue that was put on there at the request of Hydro One Brampton.  And my understanding now, from what you have said and from the preamble to the list, is that if an issue is not relevant to one of the three named applicants, it won't be within the scope of this hearing, which I understand.

So at the issues conference that was held a couple of weeks ago, Hydro One Brampton asked for this issue to be put on the list, because Brampton believed -- Brampton knew that it was relevant to Brampton, but believed it may also be relevant to Halton Hills Hydro.  We were not sure about that.

I would like to ask now if that is the case.  If it is not relevant to Halton Hills Hydro, then my understanding, from what the Board has said, is that it will not be on the list in this proceeding and it is a matter that Brampton can raise in a future proceeding, whereas if it is something that is common to both of them, then perhaps notwithstanding your clarification earlier today, Brampton would need to remain in this proceeding and ask for leave to submit evidence on this particular issue.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood.  Mr. Taylor, are you prepared to speak to that?

MR. TAYLOR:  This is new to me, Mr. Chair, so perhaps we could take five minutes and we can talk with Hydro One Brampton.  Or if you want to put it off until later, that is fine as well.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Perhaps we can.  And I think that to keep what the Board may need to be informed on is whether or not you feel that this issue is germane to your applicant's -- your client's application.  And we are now looking to expand it to, you know, to accommodate anything other than that.

So if you -- in looking at this issue, if it is something which is, you know, particular to what you feel is necessary for your client's application to be heard properly, then let's go with it.  And if it is not the case, then we will hear submissions on that, whether or not it needs to remain.

MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.

MR. QUESNELLE:  All right?  Is that satisfactory, Mr. Engelberg?

MR. ENGELBERG:  That's fine.

MR. QUESNELLE:  We will carry on going through other elements, and there may or may not be an opportunity to take a break.  If not, we will take one specifically for that.  But it may arise that we need a break for other matters anyway.  So let's just park that issue for the moment, if that is satisfactory to everyone.  Thank you.

Okay.  In the draft Issues List, and perhaps -- I didn't have an appearance from Board Staff.  I apologize for that.

MR. QUESNELLE:  All right.  It is Ljuba Cochrane for Board -- Counsel for Board Staff.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Ms. Cochrane.  Ms. Cochrane, I understand that all parties have been distributed a draft Issues List.  I wonder if we could mark that, just to ensure that we are all working with the same document.

MS. COCHRANE:  Yes.  That will be the PILs combined proceeding draft Issues List, dated February 9, 2010.  And that will be Exhibit No. 1.
EXHIBIT NO. 1:  PILS COMBINED PROCEEDING DRAFT ISSUES LIST, DATED FEBRUARY 9, 2010.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  As far as process going forward, we were looking at this and if my understanding is correct here, that the issue that is a disputed issue is Issue No. 10 and with the possibility of connection to Issue No. 11, depending on how those are interlinked, and I understand there may be some need for submission on that connection with the two.

If that is the case, I would ask parties to speak to how they see the two are connected as they're making submissions on Issue No. 10.

The draft Issues List contains Issue No. 10 and we will work from that with the starting premise.

So I will start with receiving submissions from anybody who would like to have the issue removed from the list.
Submissions by Mr. Vegh:


MR. VEGH:  Thank you, sir.  So the CLD and Enwin proposes not having this issue on the list.  We had frankly thought normally the sponsor who wants the issues on the list goes first because -- I am not 100 percent sure what the rationale is for having the issue on the list.  I think I know, and I am prepared to make submissions, but it might be helpful to know what the sponsor of this issue proposes to be addressed.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood, Mr. Vegh, and we went back and forth on this before we came in as to Issues List.  As you know, it's an odd creature and that we have a draft Issues List, what is the default here.  So we are quite willing to go with that route, if that is more amenable to you and perhaps I understand Schools is the proponent for this issue, so if you are fine with that, Mr. Shepherd, perhaps we can take that route.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Chair, I am happy to go first.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.
Submissions by Mr. Shepherd:


MR. SHEPHERD:  I will make one preliminary comment.

My friend Mr. Vegh has provided two binders of materials which I saw about three minutes ago so I have not had a chance to look at them.

I understand some of them are just submissions we made in the past so I can hardly complain he is putting my submissions back to me.  However, the big binder is the binder of cases and normally you don't have to respond to cases being cited, unless you knew about them in advance.

So I object to the inclusion of the larger binder by Mr. Vegh.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Shepherd.  Mr. Vegh, any response to that?

MR. VEGH:  Thank you.  Thank you, sir.  So there are two binders of materials that I provided.  I don't know if they have been handed up to you just so you can see what they are as I address them.

MR. QUESNELLE:  We have.

MR. VEGH:  The first is the thin binder called "Materials for issues day."  That consists of, at tab 1, the Board's Decision with Reasons on the scope of proceedings in December.  Tab 2 is a procedural order that accompanied those submissions, and tab 3 and 4 are submissions of School Energy Coalition in this proceeding.  So there is nothing new in these materials.  They're just organized.

The second book of materials is OEB decisions for rates effective March 1, 2002.  These are decisions -- these are the decisions that set the PILs amount in rates initially effective March 1, 2002.  These decisions are addressed specifically and by name and by Board EB number and the CLD and Enwin submissions in November on the scope.

So there was reference to these decisions in the past.  These decisions, they're not really evidence.  They're part of the public record of the Board already.  And they simply go to, you know, what is at issue in this case.  What are the orders that we're talking about?

There is no evidence in these materials.  They're part of the public record.  And as I said, I am sure you don't have it with you, but the CLD and Enwin made submissions in November of course when all the parties did on the scope of the proceedings, and these decisions were explicitly referred to and every decision number was listed.  So anyone who wanted to see what those decisions said could have just simply looked them up.

So I don't see how there is any prejudice in terms of new evidence.  The Board's rules talk about material that hasn't been filed.  These are Board materials.

So my submission is that it is appropriate and even necessary for this Board to look at the orders that are under discussion for it to make a determination of what is the impact of those orders.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Vegh.  Mr. Shepherd.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Chairman, what I didn't hear Mr. Vegh talk about is why this is being provided today instead of previously as it should have been.

Normally, what happens when you are relying on previous decision on precedent is that you provide it in advance because what you are going to do in your argument is you are going to characterize it.  You are going to say, This is what it means.  So it is only fair to opposing counsel they have had a chance to look at it so they can characterize it too.  Otherwise, I basically have the next hour to read that.  And that's not fair.

So however, I guess what I can suggest is this.  Our submission on the main point is that the issue is one that you have to address.

These actually go to what the resolution of the issue is.  I suspect that my friends -- the essence of my friend's argument is this issue has already been decided.  We are not going to argue with whether it's been decided or not.  If it has been decided, then our view is you have already made the decision.  The decisions that have been decided already can't be re-litigated here.

So if that is true, we lose.

However, if it is not true, and our view right now is that there is some uncertainty about whether it is true, then this proceeding should have that issue available to test it.

So I wonder if the appropriate way to deal with this is, let me make my submissions which will be brief anyway on the inclusion of the issue, and if it turns out that these speak to an issue beyond that, then it doesn't matter anymore.  Is that fair resolution?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.  I believe that would be fine, Mr. Shepherd.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Let's take that into account.  Also in the framework that recognizing we do need to make that demarcation between an issues inclusion and the issue itself, I will be listening for that type of demarcation, thank you.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  As I said, my submissions will be very brief.

What we have is a situation in which an amount had to be collected for 2001 and what the Board said is, you can - to the utilities is:  You can collect it in 2002, because it sort of snuck up on you and you didn't have a chance to collect it in your 2001 rates, so only fair from October to December you collect that money.

But the problem is that there was then a freeze on rates and as a result the utilities continued to collect it.

As I understand your decision of December 18th, it was we can't go back and decide what we think should have happened then.  What we can only do is look at what did happen then and interpret it.

So to our mind, there is three possibilities with respect to this continued extra collection of this stub period amount.  One is, there was a rule at the time, and the rule was -- as it is appropriately interpreted, you get to continue to collect it until we change your rates.  If that's the case, then the issue is resolved.

The second is, there was a rule at that time and the correct interpretation is -- of the rule was:  You are allowed to collect this until the end of 2002.  In which case then there is a question of whether the freeze changed that decision.  And that's a legal question, and it might have to be argued, but I suspect that the answer is going to be that the -- if it was simply a collection of a deferral account amount, that the answer was:  The freeze didn't change that decision.  But --

MR. QUESNELLE:  Did not?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Did not.  But that is a separate issue.

And the third possibility which we think is the likely one is that there was no rule at the time, because the Board had no way of determining that - whether there was - that there was going to be a freeze.  And therefore the Board planned a fixed period of collection and there was then no rule thereafter as to what to do.

If that's the case, then our view is the Board has to determine what should have happened at the time and is what should have happened at the time, if nothing happened.  And is what should have happened at the time limited by the freeze?

So there's those three choices.  And we don't think that the evidence before the Board right now tells us what the answer is.  So we would like the issue to be on the list so that we can assess what the -- which of those it is and therefore how it is resolved.

It may well be on the substance that the CLD is correct, that the freeze also allowed them to continue to collect this amount.  It may be true.  But the reason the issue has to be on the Issues List is to determine whether that was the rule then, or not.

The Board has said in its decision of December 18th:  In this proceeding, we have to interpret what the rules were then.  I am not asking you to make a new rule.  All I'm saying is you need to interpret what the rules were then, in this proceeding.

Those are our submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  Any other parties in support of the inclusion of this issue on the list?
Submissions by Ms. Duff:


MS. DUFF:  Sir, I am representing the Council.  We support Mr. Shepherd.  It is a responsibility to our client, the ratepayers groups, the two represented here, that to the extent that there is a difference of opinion in interpreting the Board's, you know, inclusions or exclusions, that we should resolve it and ask for clarification so that we can move forward.  But I think it is a fair issue, and the slight nuance of this particular situation is subject to interpretation.


MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Thank you very much.


Any other parties in support of inclusion?  Okay.

Mr. Vegh, you wanted to lead?

Submissions by Mr. Vegh:

MR. VEGH:  Thank you, Mr. Quesnelle.

Let me start by saying that the CLD and Enwin do appreciate the guidance that the Board has been providing throughout this proceeding.  They appreciate that the Board is addressing how to deal with matters that are not just technically complex, but go back several years and cut across several utilities and across several policy iterations.  And the process that the Board has adopted is a constructive one to approach these issues.


And in particular, the Board's December 18th decision provided considerable guidance.  I am going to be calling that decision the scoping decision, for the purposes of my submissions.  And as you mentioned in the introduction, Mr. Quesnelle, that as well as setting issues, you have been managing this proceeding so that we can deal with these issues in an orderly fashion.


And it is within this context that CLD and Enwin make their submissions on the Issues List, because it is not just the list of the issues which the parties will file evidence and argument on, but approach to addressing the issues in the combined proceedings and in the individual proceedings.


My submissions will address two basic categories of issues.  First, the disputed issue which is now Issue No. 10, and that addresses the amounts that were approved in rates that relate to the -- that were approved in rates for 2002 rates.  And our submission is that the 2001 Board-approved PILs amounts cannot now be removed from rates or otherwise be clawed back from utilities.  And we frankly thought that this issue was resolved unambiguously in the scoping decision and were surprised to see it resurrected here.

It goes to issues because if the Board does not have jurisdiction to deal with the rates, as it has determined that it does not, then it is not an appropriate subject matter for the hearing.  I will return to my submissions on this particular point, in particular.

The second category of issues that I -- of submissions that I would like to make relate to how the decisions made for these three utilities in this application will have an impact on other utilities.  And I appreciate that that was a subject matter of your comments with respect to Hydro One and Brampton, sir.  And that was helpful and that was able to remove some of the submissions, but there is another point as well that goes to the relationship between these applications and individual utility applications.


So it is related to the precedential impact issue, which I think you've already addressed with Hydro One and Brampton, but it is somewhat different.


Just by way of summary, before I make submissions on that, it goes to, again, the Board's determination of what was the approved methodology at the appropriate time.

The scoping decision, which I will take you to, stated that:

"The prudence of LDC decisions will be determined by whether the amounts were calculated in a manner that was consistent with the Board's methodology as it was established."


In other words, prudence -- for these purposes -- is being equated with consistency with instructions.

So the issue for -- which LDCs will require some clarification is really a confirmation that there may be more than one way for an LDC to act consistently with the methodology.


And this is because the methodology, of course, may be open to more than one interpretation.  I could also be -- and you mentioned that point, but it may also be that the methodology was not specific and it had gaps, and those gaps, in our submission, that will we will be addressing later, do provide a range of discretion that are open to LDCs.


It will be helpful to provide some direction in your decision on the Issues List as a way of providing direction on a going-forward basis as to how the Board will manage this case.


It is important to have the confirmation that, provided that LDC management did not do something that was prohibited, it acted consistently with the methodology; in other words, it acted prudently.  And I will be making those submissions in more detail.  I just want to provide an outline.


So first I would like to turn to my submissions, and in more detail, and first on the disputed issue.

The issue as written is Issue No. 10, and I will just read it to you. It is, as I said in my -- when you asked for the order of submissions, I said I found it a bit obscure.  It says:

"How should the continued collection of the 2001 deferral account allowance after the 2002 rate year be dealt with?"


And our submission is that this issue should not be addressed in this proceeding, because the Board does not have jurisdiction to address the continued collection of the 2001 deferral account allowances after the 2002 rate year.  And that is what this issue is asking the Board to do.


Now, as I said, I do think it is stated somewhat obscurely.  I think Mr. Shepherd did clarify what he meant by this in his opening submissions.  So I was going to take you to the earlier submissions of the SEC, where they were quite explicit on what -- the remedy they were looking for.  I don't think I have to take you to them now because I think the submissions were quite specific.


Basically, the SEC wants you to entertain the possibility that you can claw back amounts collected as 2001 approved PILs amounts, because those could amount to an overcollection of rates for the years -- for 2003.

Our submission is that the Board has no jurisdiction to do that and that the Board has already made that determination.


Now, as I said, the CLD submission is that even if you look at the way the language is phrased in proposed Issue 10, the Board does not have jurisdiction to deal with the continued collection of 2001 PILs amounts in -- after the 2002 rates year, because it has no jurisdiction to deal with that.


Now, I don't think it is necessary to go through the case law on this issue.  The case law is unambiguous and the Board has already acknowledged this point.

And I would like to go to your decision on the scoping decision, which is at tab 1 on the materials for Issues Day, and perhaps we could just mark these materials for identification purposes?


MR. QUESNELLE:  Ms. Cochrane?


MS. COCHRANE:  That will be Exhibit No. 2.
EXHIBIT NO. 2:  SMALL BINDER, MATERIALS FOR ISSUES DAY.


MS. COCHRANE:  This is the small binder, materials for Issues Day.


MR. VEGH:  Thank you.  So that is Exhibit No. 2, and at tab 1 in Exhibit No. 2 is the Board's decision on the scoping.

If you turn to page 4, the Board stated quite clearly -- under the heading "Board findings" -- it says:

"The Board cannot adjust the PILs amount included in any final rates during or after the rate-freeze period.  The Board is prohibited from changing rates retroactively or retrospectively."

The Board made the same observation in its Procedural Order, which is at tab 2 of Exhibit 2, at page 3, third --so that is tab 2, page 3 -- or page 10 of the materials, page 3 of the Procedural Order.


The Procedural Order states that:

"The Board has decided that final rates for the period November 11, 2002 to December 31, 2005..."
That's "final rates":

"...cannot be adjusted, since it is prohibited from changing rates retroactively or retrospectively."


Now, so the simple point is that each of the members of the CLD, plus Enwin, plus, I imagine, other distributors -- though we haven't, you know, gone through the actual orders for other distributors -- but each of the members of the CLD and Enwin had final orders in place, that include cost recovery of a specific amount for 2001 deferred payments, in lieu of taxes.


And the reference to each one of those orders, as I mentioned, was in the CLD and Enwin's November submissions.  So this point has -- was made to you in that case.

Now, we've collected those orders in the -- in a booklet, the booklet entitled:  "OEB decisions for rates effective March 1, 2002", which I don't think we have marked, either.


MS. COCHRANE:  So we will make that Exhibit No. 3.


MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Chairman, that is the document I am objecting to.


MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  I understand.  I think we can mark it for reference without taking it in, into consideration of the -- of your objection at this point, Mr. Shepherd.  We will just mark it for reference.

MR. VEGH:  Thank you, sir.  It is marked as Exhibit 3; is that right?

MS. COCHRANE:  Yes.

MR. VEGH:  So there is no grand elaboration or interpretation I am asking the Board to make of these decisions that have been referred to in the record already.

My only point is that when we ask what was in the final rate orders that the Board said are sacrosanct and it cannot address in these proceedings, all of those rate orders had a provision for 2001 deferred payments in lieu of taxes.

If I could just give you -- I won't go through this entire book, but to just give you an example of the first one which is the rate order for Hydro Ottawa.

At page 3 of the rate order, in page 3 of the booklet, there is a reference to the request to the rate application and what was requested by Hydro Ottawa, and you will see on page 3, there's bullet points, the list of what was requested and the third bullet point down is 2001 deferred payments in lieu of taxes or PILs of $3.7 million.

Beneath that is 2002 PILs in amount of $15 million.

Now, then following that, there is the Board's -- the Board's findings and it talks about the process by which it evaluated these applications.

Over on page 6 of this Decision, there is an adjustment of the amounts requested for PILs.  In fact, these were the 2002 PILs.  And then over at page 7, the Board's conclusion just before the statement of the order, it says that:
"The applicant's proposal," subject to the adjustments that I just mentioned, "conform with the Board's earlier decisions, directives and guidelines and the resulting rates are just and reasonable."

These rates are final rates.  I don't think there is any dispute about that.  That was, again, addressed in the submissions back in November.  And addressed in the Board's conclusion, because the Board concluded that because they're final rates, they can't be retroactively adjusted.  Final rates, of course, can only be -- can only be replaced by subsequent rates.

So the point is that for each of the utilities, there were final rates in place.  These final rates included a revenue requirement and this revenue requirement included the 2001 deferred payments in lieu of taxes and the Board simply does not have the authority to or cannot even entertain the clawing back of these amounts on some theory that there was an overpayment by ratepayers for that period.

Just as in the same way, just while we're on Hydro Ottawa, you could look at page 3 and you will see Hydro Ottawa's request for rates.

I have taken you to the third bullet point of its costs.  The second bullet point of its costs were a request for the second tranche of MARR of $9.3 million.  That was embedded in rates for a couple of years and the utilities cannot come back to you now and say:  Well, we missed out on the third tranche so go back and fix our rates for 2003 to fix that up.

You can't do that, either.  So there's a symmetry to this and obviously you can't cherry-pick and say, Well, to the extent you might have overcollected in one category, we will refund that to ratepayers, and to the extent you undercollected in another category, well, that is at your loss.

My only point is that you can't go back and that's why this is really an Issues List point, because if the Board doesn't have jurisdiction to address an issue, then that issue should not be on the Issues List, and the Board has already made a determination that it doesn't have jurisdiction to address that issue.

In fact, in my submission, there is no other possible interpretation of the scoping order.  The scoping order was quite clear that if it is in final rates it can't be -- it can't be retroactively adjusted.

The 2001 deferred payments in lieu of taxes were in final rates and they stayed in final rates until they were removed.  Those amounts cannot now be reduced.  They cannot now be removed.  They cannot be dealt with as the Issues List asks you to deal with them.

So the Board has already answered the question that is raised in proposed issue 10.

Again, the question in 10 is how should they be dealt with?  And the only possible answer, in my submission, that is available is that they should be dealt with in the same way that any other final rate order is dealt with.  That is, they should be respected and left alone.

And anything short of that is beyond the Board's jurisdiction.

So those are my submissions on Issue No. 10, the disputed issue.

I would like to turn, now, to the second category of issues which you recall from the outset is an area where the CLD and Enwin is requesting some further clarification from the Board in how to interpret and apply the scoping decision of December.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mr. Vegh, would you have any issue if we just held at that point and just dealt with Issue No. 10?  I will see if there is any other supporting parties for your position and then we will give it back to Mr. Shepherd.

MR. VEGH:  Thank you, sir, that's fine.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  Any other parties wish to speak in support of the position of removal of this issue?
Submissions by Mr. Taylor:


MR. TAYLOR:  Mr. Chair, we support that position.  The only point I would want to add is that this booklet seems to contain a lot of decisions that are final, but Bill 210 deemed all interim decisions to be final as well.

So Mr. Vegh's argument would apply to interim decisions as well as final decisions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Taylor.  Any other parties in support?  Mr. Engelberg?
Submissions by Mr. Engelberg:


MR. ENGELBERG:  Brampton supports the CLD position.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Seeing no other parties.  Mr. Shepherd, reply?
Further Submissions by Mr. Shepherd:


MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Chairman, I will be brief.

I have two comments.  The first is Mr. Vegh made what I considered to be quite a shocking statement that if there were gaps in the methodology, that those gaps result in the LDCs having discretion to do what they think is best.

MR. VEGH:  Sorry, I don't want to interrupt.  Those are the submissions I didn't get to.  You asked me to return to those, so it might be more helpful for Mr. Shepherd to hear my submissions first before replying to them.

MR. QUESNELLE:  I believe his comments on the gaps were referring to things that he intends to speak to, to get information, more clarity as to where the Board is going in a process manner.  Is that correct Mr. Vegh?

MR. VEGH:  Yes, and I will address those submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Is that fine with you, Mr. Shepherd?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.  Although that is central to my argument, I suppose, that gaps need to be filled and it is not a one-sided thing.  LDCs don't fill the gaps, the Board fills the gaps.

MR. QUESNELLE:  I understand.

MR. SHEPHERD:  However we can deal with that, then.

The other thing I think -- and this is really the critical thing -- is Mr. Vegh talked about things like the second tranche and the third tranche being delayed and that sort of stuff and that is not the only thing.  There were lots of things that the LDCs got pretty badly whacked from the freeze and everybody understands that.

But the difference between those things and this one is those things did not have a pre-existing deferral account that was intended to true-up the collection of the amounts.

There was a system in place to allow collection of certain new amounts -- because PILs were new -- and then have it trued up later when everybody figured out what the right numbers were.

The idea was to make sure everybody got protected.  And so the fact that there was a freeze didn't change the fundamental nature of 1562, which it was supposed to be a true-up account.

So the issue here, I think, is whether the 2001 stub period is part of that true-up, or not.  And if it is, then, you know, you have Board orders like, for example, you have an order from -- the one that my friend just referred to Hydro Ottawa that says $3.7 million in 2001 PILs, we need to adjust for it.

And so they say, Okay, well, we're going to give you a rate rider - on page 7 - rate rider for March 1st 2002 to February 28, 2003 to cover the stuff.



And so if that was the end of it, if there was no deferral account in place, if the Board had not already made a determination that this was an area in which there's supposed to be a true-up later, I would accept that Mr. Vegh's argument is rock solid.

We have a different situation here.  This is the only one that I know of in which the Board had previously determined that when this was figured out later, it would be trued up.  And that having been the case, there is an open issue as to the interpretation of the scope of that true-up during the freeze.

I just point out that the Board in its December 11th decision has quoted the EDA and the CLD as follows, and this is on page 6:

"The EDA and CLD portray the main purpose of the account..."

This is 1562:

"...as being to record the difference between what was included in rates and what was collected from ratepayers through rates.  There is some acknowledgement by those parties that the account was also intended for some level of true-up between amounts included in rates and amounts actually payable."

Now, the point I am making here is nobody disagrees there was supposed to be a true-up, and there is a live issue in this proceeding: what was supposed to be trued up with what and how thoroughly and were there exceptions.  And the Board will have to interpret, during this process, what the methodology and what the rules were during that time as to true-up, what was expected.

What I don't want is I don't want Mr. Vegh to come later in this proceeding and say:  Well, you know what?  Sorry, this really relates to that stub period.  So we've already decided that wasn't going to be trued up.  That was not allowed.

I want that to be open as part of the question of what was supposed to be trued up to what.

Those are our submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.

MS. COCHRANE:  Mr. Chair?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Ms. Cochrane?

MS. COCHRANE:  Yes.
Submissions by Ms. Cochrane:

MS. COCHRANE:  Just on behalf of Board Staff, we would just like to point out that the scoping decision, as it's been referred to on page 3 in paragraph 3, specifically states that the Board found that it can review the balances in account 1562 across the entire time period.

So just for the record, Staff is not entirely comfortable with Mr. Vegh's submissions that, if I understood correctly, that the Board itself decided it does not have jurisdiction.

As you may recall in Board Staff's submissions on this threshold issue, we have stated that deferral accounts are an exception to the general principle against retroactive or retrospective ratemaking.

And my reading of the scoping decision, the section I just quoted from page 3, is that's, you know, consistent with those submissions, because a deferral account -- as Mr. Shepherd pointed out -- had there not been deferral accounts, then, yes, it would clearly have been an exercise in retroactive ratemaking, but I don't see that the issue is that clear-cut in the present case.

There is case law on this issue.  I was not prepared to argue this today.  If the Panel would find it helpful to have some more legal argument or case law or wishes to, you know, further clarify the issue, you know, are we -- is reviewing account 1562 an exercise in retroactive ratemaking?  Or is it permitted as an exception because it is a deferral account?

And if that is the case, I mean, if the Panel would like to hear more about that, then I would suggest we either make some submissions in writing after today, or that we come back at some point to make oral arguments about that.

But it is a pretty significant issue and I am not comfortable just, you know, making submissions off the top of my head, especially, you know, if it has to -- there's going to be some decision about the Board's jurisdiction.

Those are my submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Ms. Cochrane.

Can you just give me one moment for the Panel?

[Board Panel confer]

MR. QUESNELLE:  I'm going to suggest something to the parties here and make sure it works here, that we -- the Panel is satisfied that it's heard the submissions on Issue No. 10.  And to provide two things -- us, an opportunity to deliberate on that, and to also allow Hydro One Brampton and Halton Hills to conference on the Issue No. 14 -- No. 13, rather, and perhaps get back to us on that -- what we will do is take a 15-minute recess, allow us to come back, provide our decision on Issue No. 10, and then also hear from Hydro One Brampton and Halton Hills on Issue 13, and then also hear from Mr. Vegh and the CLD on further submissions that, I believe, could be characterized as the need for future guidance on the proceeding as to where things could end up, which would inform the parties as to how to participate in a more efficient fashion.

Is that acceptable to all?

MR. VEGH:  That would be good.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Thank you.

Let's get back together at 10 after 3:00.

--- Recess taken at 2:52 p.m.


--- On resuming at 3:10 p.m.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Please be seated.
DECISION:


The Board has reached a Decision on the issue of inclusion of the Issue No. 10 on the Draft Issues List.

The Board has found that it can review the disposition of account 1562 through the entire period in question.  Parties have acknowledged that the account was intended for some level of true-up between the amounts in rates and the amounts actually payable.

The Board finds that the disputed issue is on point with that assessment.

For clarity, the Board amends the wording of the issue to read:

"How should the continued collection of the 2001 PILs amount in rates be considered in the operation of the PILs deferral account?"


Having ruled on that, I will just ask if Hydro One Brampton and Halton Hills have had an opportunity to discuss the remaining inclusion of Issue No. 13?

MR. TAYLOR:  We have, Mr. Chair.  The issue set out in No. 13 does apply to Halton Hills.  It is one of two issues that apply to us.  So we would prefer to keep 13 on the Issues List.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.

MR. TAYLOR:  As well, to throw a wrench into the machinery as well, I would actually like to get a little bit of guidance from the Board as to whether or not an issue -- or an issue that is important to Halton Hills, if you believe would be covered by the Issues List as it is drafted.

We think it might be, but we just want to get confirmation because we just want to ensure we are not precluded from making an argument down the road.

MR. QUESNELLE:  I would like to say at this point that we are going into an area now where we have, I believe, a generally agreed to and the Board is probably willing to accept the issues and we will manage the case as we go forward.

I think that to the extent we are still going to hear from Mr. Vegh on I think the need for further guidance, we will take that under advisement and respond in our Procedural Order that confirms the Issues List.  If we can provide more guidance we will.  But I think it is difficult at this point to now visit individual issues and determine they're in or out.  I think we set the day up with the -- being prepared to hear submissions on them, but for clarity's sake, it may be difficult to go through individual issues and determine whether or not you think they are.

The parties have had, I think, a fair bit of time with this draft Issues List.  This goes back quite some time to discuss them.  I think if you feel that you are comfortable with the Issues List, bring your submissions forward.

If through the interrogatory process, we have to rule on certain items, whatever, we will.  But I think it would be difficult at this point to venture into the full clarity.  We will know it when we see it.  I hate to be that blunt about it, but we will have to measure some of this as we go forward.  Thank you.

Just -- I can provide a little guidance on this.  On item No. 13, if it is pertaining to Halton Hills, your client, that's great.  Address your case in such a way.

I think circling back to your earlier clarification we gave to Hydro One Brampton, there is -- will be an opportunity, I can put that much forward -- there will be an opportunity in future processes that if you feel that it would be better to deal with your issue as it pertains to your facts in a future submission, do so -- in future process.  Go ahead and do so.

It will not be a missed opportunity if you see that your situation may be based on different facts that warrant a different outcome, and just be guided by that.

I think what we would like to do is get through this process with these three applicants on the evidence that is before us now, and then determine how far we have come down the road here and be able to address all issues everywhere, and we will come up with the best process going forward from there.

What we don't want to do now, in fairness to the applicants that are before the Board, is slow down these proceedings in testing hypothetical scenarios, in tweaking the existing evidence to a point where it might suit someone else who is outside of this proceeding and to test hypotheticals.

I think we have a lot of LDCs out there.  I think that they will be informed by the outcome of this proceeding.  And the outcome of this proceeding will, then, determine -- the Board will determine based on that the best way forward.

It would be unfair to those who are have not participated to date to find themselves, after the fact, being square on with an issue which is in this case -- sorry -- having facts that are slightly off and then trying to bend what the decision is and apply it to themselves.  I think we want to give everyone a fair opportunity going forward.  We have come this far and we want to concentrate on the applicants that are before us and the evidence that is here.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Chair, in the letter filed by Hydro One Brampton last Friday that you read from earlier -

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Brampton requested leave to file limited evidence in this proceeding if it turned out that this issue, No. 13, would remain on the list in this proceeding so that Brampton could elucidate it with its particular facts.

Based on what you said then and what you are saying now, will Brampton have the opportunity to -- will Brampton have leave to file limited evidence on Issue No. 13 in this proceeding?  Given that the result of it will be binding on Brampton?

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.  Just one moment.

[Board Panel confer]

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.  At this point, if the intervenors are interested in filing intervenor evidence that they feel may be helpful to the Board and elucidate decisions based on their facts, if it is covered by the Issues List, at this point we would say yes, go ahead and file it.  We will deal with it as it comes forward.  It may be helpful to the Board.  It may be helpful to, in this proceeding, to be able to cast light on what the Board decides on those particular facts as well.  But we will be resisting the stretching of the current applicants' evidence to consider all permutations of scenarios that could occur.  I suppose that may be a limiting amount, but feel free to do as you requested.

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Mr. Clear.  That clarification is very helpful.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  Okay.  Mr. Taylor?

MR. TAYLOR:  Just along those lines, Mr. Chair, I am going to ask you for an opportunity to file limited evidence as well, some additional evidence.  As a result of an oversight, we didn't include something in the package that we filed last time.

So we would like to do that in short order, prior to the first round or the interrogatories that have been scheduled in the procedural order to give everyone enough time to file any interrogatories with your permission.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes, Mr. Taylor.  Feel free to do so.  If situations arise with timing and opportunity to properly accept that evidence and then seek further time, we will have to deal with that as time -- as that occurs.

MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.

If there are no other submissions on what we have dealt with to date, Mr. Vegh you had a further submission that you wanted to make that would, I think, perhaps looking for further guidance along certain lines.

MR. VEGH:  Thank you, sir.
Submissions by Mr. Vegh:

MR. VEGH:  You have characterized these submissions accurately.  It is really going to the decision, the scoping decision which is at tab 1 of the materials at Exhibit 2, and I will be taking you to that decision and indicating why some further direction would be helpful to the CLD and Enwin, in particular.

And appreciating that it was a scoping decision and I appreciate your comments, we do have to let the hearing play itself out a bit on the issue-by-issue basis, so it is just layer down, perhaps, from the scoping decision where some direction would be helpful.

It has to do with the Board's treatment -- the decision, the treatment of the methodology described by the Board and how the methodology is to be applied.

And there are a couple of quotations I would like to take you to, to just -- to help with that, to help set that up.

The first is on page 4, where, under the heading "Board Findings" in the second paragraph, the decision addresses what is the framework, that is what is the Board reviewing in this case, and there's a discussion in the first sentence on prudence.

There is a bit of an elaboration of what prudence means in this context in the second sentence, and that is what I am taking you to.  The Panel says:

"I is not a prudence review in the sense of determining whether expenditures were prudently incurred.  Rather, it is a prudence review in the sense of ensuring the accuracy of the accounts and whether the amounts placed in the accounts were calculated in a manner consistent with the Board's methodology that was established at the time."

So the focus is on the consistency with the methodology.  And over at page 7, the same point is made.  In the second -- well, the first full paragraph from the top, at the second paragraph, it says:

"The parties may well differ in their interpretation of the methodology, but the Board will decide those questions..."

That is the questions of what was the methodology:

"...based on the facts and the underlying documents."

So the submissions that I wanted to make and the guidance that is requested goes to the precision of the methodology that was prescribed to the utilities from the Board.

As we can appreciate, without diving into the methodology, that the methodology would still have left some matters of judgment to utility management.  So our submission is that, and what we would like the Board to provide direction on, is with respect to the submission that if the Board -- if the Board-approved methodology or the methodology that's referred to in this decision did not prescribe a precise outcome, then the question for direction is:  Well, then what?

And our submission is that, in the absence of a prescribed outcome from the methodology, the utility was in reality granted a scope of discretion with respect to how to apply the methodology.

And provided that a utility exercised its judgment within this scope of discretion, it should not be second-guessed now.  And that's the direction that it's looking for.

In other words, if there is a gap in the methodology, that gap doesn't mean that there was a vacuum that has to be filled today.  That gap presented a utility with a scope for judgment, for managerial decision making.

And this concept of not second-guessing a decision that was made within utility discretion underlines a basic premise behind the concept of prudence, as you know, which is that utilities have the right to manage their businesses, and their decisions should be evaluated on the basis of the circumstances known to them at the time.

So if, at the time a decision was made, the Board's guidelines left and methodology left room for discretion, then utilities that exercise that discretion within the scope of that methodology should not be second-guessed now and told that it was incorrect.

And the Board did recognize this basic premise on a couple of occasions in the scoping decision.

For example, on page 6 of the scoping decision, the Board addressed the issue of whether it should develop a methodology now to see what the methodology should be, or to determine what the methodology was at the time the utilities made decisions.  And in deciding that it was more appropriate to determine what the methodology was at the time, the Board emphasized the need for not second-guessing utility decisions that were made in reliance on Board directions.

And so at the top of page 6, for example, the decision refers to the methodology as "granting tools" and it says:

"These tools were sanctioned by the Board and formed the basis on which distributors were expected to operate.  It was reasonable to expect any methodological changes would be prospective in their application."

And also towards the bottom of that page, the last paragraph, the decision, again, refers to tools -- sorry, the second-last paragraph on this page.  Sorry.  Yes.  They refer to instruments, not tools.  Same metaphor.

While the instruments were not the result of rates proceedings, they're all sanctioned by the Board -- and this is what I would emphasize -- and form the directions under which distributors were expected to operate.

So there is an appreciation that the Board provides the direction, but then the distributor has to make decisions and has to operate and isn't always told with a level of precision of what is expected, so they have to operate within a certain framework.

So the guidelines and directions, instruments, tools must be complied with, but they would have left room for judgment.

And to the extent that this judgment was exercised in a manner that is not inconsistent with those guidelines, even if not precisely prescribed by those guidelines, our submission is that they should not be second-guessed.

And the specific request of the Board in this regard is that -- and I guess the place to address this is not in adding an issue to the list, but perhaps in the reasons or commentary that is released at the time the -- of the decision today -- the request is that the Board, in determining what the methodology was at the time the entries were made, it would be helpful if the Board will indicate that it will be precise about what was and was not prescribed.

And where something was not prescribed, that lack of prescription does identify a sphere of discretion within which the utility may make decisions, and provided that utilities' decisions were made within that sphere, they would not be second-guessed in this proceeding.

So those are my submissions on this point, and really what this does, as I said at the outset, is provide a layer of granularity which is, I think, just one level down from the scoping decision.  So it does provide guidance but doesn't get you into the weeds of the specific applications that you will be receiving before you.

So that's the direction we requested.  And those are my submissions on that point, sir, subject to any questions you may have.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Vegh.  Any other submissions?

Mr. Vegh has opened up an area we hadn't really anticipated hearing today, so certainly if someone has something they would like to add, I would certainly open the floor.  Mr. Shepherd?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Chair, I will have submissions, but I wonder if people in support of Mr. Vegh should go first.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Request that now.  Anyone else?  That's fine.  Mr. Shepherd.
Submissions by Mr. Shepherd:

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thanks.  I was also a little bit surprised by this being brought up, but I think it is a legitimate question that Mr. Vegh is raising, even despite the surprise.

Before I went to law school, which was a very long time ago, as an undergraduate my major was philosophy.  This is an area which would be called, in philosophy, metaphysics, in which my friend is trying to have the Board make a conceptual decision in the absence of the factual situations that would drive it.

And as this Panel will be aware, that's always really dangerous.  For philosophers it is okay because nothing turns on it, but for the Board to make a conceptual decision without having actual facts in front of them to say what is this going to mean if we decide this way, we think is a very bad idea.

So let me deal with it in two ways.

First of all, as a matter of principle, if the Board doesn't say something to a utility, does that mean they can do whatever they want?  Clearly, the answer to that is no.

There are some times when that is true, but there there's a lot of times when, even though the Board doesn't say:  You must do this, the utility is expected to act in a certain way consistent with the general principles of how this Board operates.

So in terms of whether you could simply agree to Mr. Vegh on the basis of a general principle, I think the answer is no.  If there is any general principle, it would be contrary to what he is proposing.

But I think the more compelling reason why making a decision, as requested, is not a good idea is that you can imagine the range of fact situations which might actually arise in bringing this principle that he is proposing into play.

You could have, at the one end, you could have the methodology say -- and it does in some places -- say to the utilities:   You have an express choice between A and B.  Choose one.  There's methodologies, selections that are actually allowed right in the guidance.  Where that is the case, clearly they had a choice.  You told them they had a choice.

At the other extreme, you will have situations where the Board didn't say something in its guidance because it was obvious that there was only one intelligent way to do it and you would not expect a utility to do it any other way but that one way.  You didn't say it because you didn't think you needed to.  So at that extreme, there would be no discretion.  It is simply obvious that there is only one right way to do it.

In between those is a gradation of options, of choices, of fact situations.

There will be some of those situations, I agree with Mr. Vegh, in which the logical way to resolve it is to say, the utility had to make a judgment call.  It is reasonable to have -- to allow them today to have made it then.

But there will also be some in which you will say, We didn't really intend you to have a discretion here.  When we put out this methodology out, we didn't really intend you to go off in this direction.  We thought you would understand that the methodology implied a whole bunch of other things.

So I guess our submission is, don't make a decision on the metaphysical question, but rather as the proceeding arises, these things will come up and that is the time to ask the question:  What's the right thing to do for this point and for this issue, rather than the general issue.

Those are our submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you very much.  I thank Mr. Vegh and Mr. Shepherd for their assistance in that.  If the Board feels it has a requirement to do so, we will reflect guidance, further guidance than it has already given in the subsequent procedural order that will be issued establishing the issue list.

And I don't know that we have anything else.

One thing I will mention, just as a reminder -- and this is to Mr. Vegh, I wouldn't want our silence to be considered an acceptance.  Mr. Vegh, I do think it would have been helpful to the Board and to Mr. Shepherd to have a compilation, anything that you planned on giving as far as material in accordance with the Practice Direction and some advance notice.  It just more helpful for us to shape the day obviously and to have all parties prepared.

Recognizing all of those decisions that were put on the record, they were referenced earlier, but this has been a long proceeding and the public record is huge.  So I think that to that extent, just a reminder that it is helpful for the Board and all parties if we respect the procedural orders around that or, sorry, the Board's rules on that matter.

Thank you.

MR. VEGH:  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  I think that is it.  We don't have anything else to deal with today.

As I said, the Board will follow up with a procedural order establishing the Issues List as the fall-out of today.

We have Procedural Order No. 7 laid out the next steps as far as the IRs are concerned.  Mr. Taylor has spoken for his client today.  There will be evidence.  I urge you to get that in as early as possible, to not slow down the process that has already been established.

And with that, I thank you very much.

--- Whereupon hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.
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